
Northern Inyo Healthcare District

Board Meeting
Board Meeting - November 19, 2025

Agenda

Agenda ............................................................................................................................ 2

Consent Agenda

Special Meeting Minutes - October 15, 2025 ................................................................ 5
Regular Meeting Minutes - October 15, 2025 ............................................................... 6
California Job Applicant Privacy Notice .................................................................... 17
Environmental Services Department Hours of Service ............................................ 20
Medical Staff Department Policy - Surgery ................................................................ 21
Patient Visit Registration Related to Accidents on Northern Inyo Healthcare  ...... 23
Processing Returned Mail ........................................................................................... 25
Processing United States Postal Service Mail .......................................................... 26
Prevention of Catheter- Associated Urinary Tract Infections (CAUTIs) .................. 29

New Business

ACHD Letter of Support ............................................................................................... 38

Chief Executive Officer Report

CyberMaxx Update ....................................................................................................... 39

Governance Committee

Memo - Governance Organizational Alignment and CEO Performance: Jacob  .... 45
Governance Organizational Alignment and CEO Performance: Jacob Green  ...... 46

Quality Committee

Memo - Quality Dashboard .......................................................................................... 58
Quality Dashboard ....................................................................................................... 59

Chief Financial Officer Report

CFO Report Financial Summary and Operation Insights - September 2025 .......... 64
NIHD Financial Summary September 2025 ................................................................ 69
NIHD KPIs FYE September 2025 ................................................................................. 72
NIHD Financial Update September 2025 .................................................................... 74
NIHD Financial Statements September 2025 ............................................................. 80

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

Page 1 of 83

http://www.tcpdf.org


 

Vision Statement 
 

To be an energized, high performing advocate for the communities we 
serve, our patients and our staff. The board governs with an eye on the 
future of health care and its effects on the District and patient care. 
The Board is committed to continuous evaluation, dedication to our 
mission, and improvements as a board. 
 

Values 
 

* Integrity * Innovate Vision * Stewardship * Teamwork * 

Mission 
 

* Strong Stewardship * Ethical Oversight * 
*Eternal Local Access * 

AGENDA 
 

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

 
November 19, 2025, 5:00 pm  

 
The Board meets in person at 2957 Birch Street, Bishop, CA 93514. Members of the public will be 
allowed to attend in person or via Zoom. Public comments can be made in person or via Zoom.  
 
TO CONNECT VIA ZOOM:  (A link is also available on the NIHD Website) 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/3257893484?pwd=VrgnzdFhLFICk7h6MlbfqehXlilrqm.1#success 
Meeting ID: 325 789 3484 
Password: 623576 
 
PHONE CONNECTION: 
(669) 444-9171 
(253) 215-8782 
Meeting ID: 325 789 3484 
 
 

1. Call to Order at 5:00 pm 

2. Public Comment: The purpose of public comment is to allow members of the public to address the 

Board of Directors. Public comments shall be received at the beginning of the meeting and are 

limited to three (3) minutes per speaker, with a total time limit of thirty (30) minutes for all public 

comments unless otherwise modified by the Chair. Speaking time may not be granted and/or 

loaned to another individual for purposes of extending available speaking time unless 

arrangements have been made in advance for a large group of speakers to have a spokesperson 

speak on their behalf. Comments must be kept brief and non-repetitive. The general Public 

Comment portion of the meeting allows the public to address any item within the jurisdiction of 

the Board of Directors on matters not appearing on the agenda. Public comments on agenda items 

should be made at the time each item is considered.  

 
 

Page 2 of 83



Page, 2, Agenda, NIHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting 
 

3. Consent Agenda – All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and will be 

enacted by one motion unless any member of the Board wishes to remove an item for discussion.  

a. Approval of minutes for October 15, 2025, Special Board Meeting 

b. Approval of minutes for October 15, 2025, Regular Board Meeting 

c. Approval of Policies and Procedures  

i. California Job Applicant Privacy Notice 

ii. Environmental Services Department Hours of Service 

iii. Medical Staff Department Policy - Surgery 

iv. Patient Visit Registration Related to Accidents on Northern Inyo Healthcare 

District (NIHD) Property 

v. Processing Returned Mail 

vi. Processing United States Postal Service Mail 

vii. Prevention of Catheter- Associated Urinary Tract Infections (CAUTIs) 

 
 

4. New Business:  

a. Ad Hoc Committee 

i. Recommendation for Board Appointment – Action Item  

b. ACHD Letter of Support – Action Item 

c. Chief Executive Officer Report 

i. Five Star Bank – Information Item  

ii. IT Director Introduction: Chad Henderson – Information Item  

iii. CyberMaxx Update – Information Item 

iv. CSDA – Information Item  

d. Chief Human Resources Officer / Chief Business Development Officer 

i. Auxiliary Update – Information Item  

ii. Foundation Update – Information Item  

e. Governance Committee  

i. Governance Organizational Alignment and CEO Performance: Jacob Green 

Contract  – Action Item  

f. Quality Committee 

i. Quality Dashboard – Information Item  

ii. Community Health Needs Assessment – Information Item  

Page 3 of 83



Page, 3, Agenda, NIHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting 
 

g. Finance Committee 

i. Strategic Growth: Wifpli – Information Item 

ii. Financial & Statistical Reports (Board will consider the approval of these reports) 

5. General Information from Board Members (Board will provide this information)  

 
 

6. Adjournment 

 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you require special accommodations to participate in a 

District Board meeting, please contact the administration at (760) 873-2838 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.   

Page 4 of 83



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors            October 15, 2025 
Special Meeting  Page 1 of 1 
 
CALL TO ORDER Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) Board Chair Turner called the 

meeting to order at 4:08 pm.  
 

PRESENT Jean Turner, Chair 
Melissa Best-Baker, Vice Chair 
David Lent, Secretary 
Laura Smith, Member at Large 
 
Christian Wallis, Interim Chief Executive Officer 
Allison Partridge, Chief Operations Officer / Chief Nursing Officer 
Adam Hawkins, DO, Chief Medical Officer 
Alison Murray, Chief Human Resources Officer, Chief Business Development  
     Officer 
Andrea Mossman, Chief Financial Officer  
 

TELECONFERENCING Notice has been posed and a quorum participated from locations within the 
jurisdiction.  
 

PUBLIC COMMENT ON 
CLOSED SESSION ITEMS 

Chair Turner reported that at this time, audience members may speak on any 
items not on the agenda that are within the jurisdiction of the Board.  
 
There were no comments from the public. 
 

ADJOURNMENT TO 
CLOSED SESSION  
 

Adjournment to closed session at 4:09 pm 
 

RETURN TO OPEN 
SESSION 
 

Called back to order at 5:14 pm 
 
Chair Turner stated there were no reportable actions from the closed session 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Adjournment at 5:14 pm. 

 
 

______________________________ 
Jean Turner 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District  
Chair 

 
 

Attest: ______________________________ 
David Lent 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District Chair  
Secretary  

 

Page 5 of 83



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors            October 15, 2025 
Regular Meeting  Page 1 of 11 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) Board Chair Turner called the 

meeting to order at 5:21 pm.  
 

PRESENT Jean Turner, Chair 
Melissa Best-Baker, Vice Chair 
David Lent, Secretary 
Laura Smith, Member at Large 
 
Christian Wallis, Interim Chief Executive Officer 
Allison Partridge, Chief Operations Officer / Chief Nursing Officer 
Adam Hawkins, DO, Chief Medical Officer 
Alison Murray, Chief Human Resources Officer, Chief Business Development  
     Officer 
Andrea Mossman, Chief Financial Officer  
Sam Jeppsen, Chief of Staff 
 

TELECONFERENCING Notice has been posed and a quorum participated from locations within the 
jurisdiction.  
 

PUBLIC COMMENT ON 
CLOSED SESSION ITEMS 

Chair Turner reported that at this time, audience members may speak on any 
items not on the agenda that are within the jurisdiction of the Board.  
 
Public Comment:  
Representatives from the Eastern Sierra Cancer Alliance provided an update on 
the organization’s recent 25th Anniversary fundraising celebration, reporting 
that the event exceeded its $25,000 goal by raising more than $37,000 to 
support local patients through the We Care program. They expressed 
appreciation to the District and its employees for long-standing partnership and 
community support benefiting cancer patients in Inyo and Mono Counties. 

Several employees addressed the Board regarding ongoing labor negotiations. 
Speakers shared concerns that the proposed contract terms are not competitive 
with regional wage levels and that the high cost of living in Bishop has made it 
difficult for staff to remain employed locally. They cautioned that without fair 
and sustainable compensation, turnover will increase and the District may again 
be forced to rely on higher-cost traveler staff—funds they urged be directed 
instead toward retaining current employees who are committed to serving the 
community. 

Comments emphasized that cost-of-living adjustments and competitive pay are 
essential to maintaining morale, ensuring staffing stability, and preserving 
quality patient care, particularly in specialized areas such as perinatal services. 
Several speakers shared personal experiences illustrating financial strain related 
to housing, childcare, and inflation, and asked the District to recognize 
employees’ dedication through equitable compensation practices. 

Community members also expressed support for hospital staff, noting that 
retaining experienced employees benefits patient outcomes, strengthens 

Page 6 of 83



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors            October 15, 2025 
Regular Meeting  Page 2 of 11 
 

hospital operations, and contributes to overall community health. 
 

ADJOURNMENT TO 
CLOSED SESSION  
 

Adjournment to closed session at 5:51 pm 
 

RETURN TO OPEN 
SESSION 
 

Called back to order at 7:01 pm 
 
Chair Turner stated there were no reportable actions from the closed session. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA  Motion by Best-Baker: to approve the Consent agenda 
2nd: Lent 
Pass: 4-0 
 

NEW BUSINESS  CEO Contract 
 
The Board considered approval of an employment agreement for Dr. Christian 
Wallis as Chief Executive Officer of the Northern Inyo Healthcare District. 
 
In accordance with Government Code Section 54953(c)(3), the Board Chair 
provided an oral summary of the contract terms prior to action. The contract 
establishes a three-year term, effective October 15, 2025 through October 14, 
2028, with an annual salary of $460,000, subject to potential future merit 
increases. Benefits include those available to other management employees, and 
a one-time relocation allowance of $15,000. 

Public Comment: None 

Board Discussion:  
Director Smith expressed concern that the process leading to the proposed 
employment agreement had not been adequately followed. The director stated 
that, as public representatives, Board Members have a duty to explain their 
reasoning when voting against an item of this significance and voiced 
disagreement with both the procedural approach and the salary amount 
proposed for the position. 

Motion by Best-Baker: to approve the CEO Contract 
2nd: Lent  
Pass: 3-1 

After approval, the Board viewed a short video produced by the Grossmont 
Healthcare District highlighting Dr. Wallis’s leadership and service, followed 
by remarks from the Board Chair recognizing his extensive leadership 
background and the high regard in which he is held by healthcare leaders across 
California. The Chair expressed appreciation for Dr. Wallis’s contributions 
during his tenure as Interim CEO and welcomed him as NIHD’s permanent 
Chief Executive Officer. 

Wallis thanked the Board and staff for their confidence and support, stating that 
his decision to remain at NIHD was influenced by the dedication of the 

Page 7 of 83



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors            October 15, 2025 
Regular Meeting  Page 3 of 11 
 

leadership team, employees, and community. He expressed enthusiasm for 
continuing the District’s progress and commitment to excellence in patient care. 
 

 Posting of public notice to fill the Zone 1 (one) vacancy due to the 
resignation of Director Barrett on September 29, 2025 in accordance with 
Gov’t Code 1780(d) and appointment of an ad hoc committee  
 
Appointment of Ad Hoc Committee  
 
Public Comment: None  
 
Board Discussion: 
The Board discussed the vacancy created by the recent resignation of Director 
Barrett, who represented Zone 1. The Board Chair reviewed the statutory 
process outlined in Government Code Section 1780, which provides two 
options for filling a vacant elected position—by special election or by Board 
appointment within 60 days of the vacancy. 

The Chair explained that historically the District has filled Board vacancies by 
appointment, noting that the cost and scheduling of a special election would 
significantly delay seating a new director. The Board therefore considered 
whether to proceed by appointment and whether to form an Ad Hoc 
Committee to review applications and recommend a candidate for Board 
approval. 

The Chair proposed that the Governance Committee serve as the Ad Hoc 
Committee for this purpose, consistent with past practice, and recommended 
that the recruitment process begin immediately to remain within the statutory 
60-day window. The Chair also requested that any Board members wishing to 
suggest interview questions or topics for consideration forward them within the 
week so that the full Board’s input could be incorporated into the selection 
process. 

During discussion, Director Smith expressed interest in serving on the Ad Hoc 
Committee, citing prior experience with candidate selection and a desire for 
broader Board representation. The Chair acknowledged the request but 
confirmed that the Governance Committee would serve as the Ad Hoc 
Committee, consistent with prior practice. The Chair stated she would meet 
with Director Smith to gather any suggested interview questions or issues for 
inclusion and further noted an intent to involve an independent community 
member with executive recruitment experience to help ensure the process is 
transparent and fair. 

Legal counsel clarified that two separate actions were required: first, a motion 
to proceed by appointment rather than special election; and second, a motion to 
confirm the composition of the Ad Hoc Committee. 

Motion by Best-Baker: to fill the Zone 1 vacancy by appointment rather than 
special election and to form an Ad Hoc Committee for this purpose. 

Page 8 of 83



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors            October 15, 2025 
Regular Meeting  Page 4 of 11 
 

2nd: Lent 
Pass: 4-0  
 
Motion by Best-Baker: to appoint the Governance Committee members to 
serve as the Ad Hoc Committee for the Zone 1 vacancy process.  
2nd: Lent 
Pass: 3-1  
Opposed: Smith   
 

 Finance Committee Appointment/Alternate  

Public Comment: None  
 
Board Discussion: 
The Board discussed the need to fill the Finance and Audit Committee vacancy 
created by Director Barrett’s resignation. Chair Turner noted that the committee 
meets monthly and that only two meetings remain in the calendar year—
November and December. 

Chair Turner explained that the departing director previously served on the 
Finance Committee, with the Chair Turner serving as the alternate. Chair 
Turner offered to either continue as the alternate or step into the regular 
committee role if another director preferred to serve as alternate. 

Director Smith declined interest in the Finance Committee, noting existing 
committee commitments. Director Turner confirmed willingness to serve as an 
committee member, and Director Lent agreed to serve as the alternate for the 
remainder of the year. 

Motion by Best-Baker: to appoint Turner as the Finance Committee member 
and Lent as the alternate through December 2025. 
2nd: Smith 
Pass: 4–0 
 

CEO REPORT  Strategic Growth: Market Survey, Master Facility Plan, and Long-Range 
Financial Planning  

CEO Wallis provided an overview of NIHD’s Strategic Growth initiative, 
explaining that the District’s largely reactive operations have contributed to 
recurring financial instability. He highlighted significant access constraints, 
including long wait times for primary and specialty care, and noted that 
outpatient infrastructure is undersized. Many campus areas remain 
underutilized, while other clinics, such as Women’s Health and PMA, face 
severe space and privacy limitations. Surgical operations function at roughly 
60% capacity, with improvements underway through revised scheduling. 

Wallis emphasized the need to transition from fragmented services to fully 
developed service lines to reduce patient transfers to external systems. He 
outlined a three-part framework: conducting a market demand and provider 

Page 9 of 83



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors            October 15, 2025 
Regular Meeting  Page 5 of 11 
 

needs analysis, developing a Master Facility Plan to modernize and right-size 
clinical spaces, and creating a long-range financial plan to sustain investment. 
This approach, he stated, would shift NIHD from reactive decision-making to 
deliberate, data-driven growth for the foreseeable future. 

Following Wallis’s remarks, representatives from Wipfli and WOLD Architects 
presented their joint proposal for a comprehensive planning engagement. 
Partner John Dao explained Wipfli’s expertise in reimbursement and market 
analysis for rural hospitals, while Josh Ripplinger described WOLD’s role in 
facility evaluation and design. They detailed a five-phase process encompassing 
financial capacity assessment, market and provider analysis, facility review, 
conceptual design, and financial feasibility modeling. The resulting plan will 
project service-area needs, define infrastructure priorities, and ensure capital 
investments are both sustainable and optimized for Medicare reimbursement. 

Public Comment: Members of the public expressed support for the scope and 
data-driven approach, asked whether the District had assessed the potential 
overall cost and debt capacity for later implementation, and suggested 
considering a staged, gate-based approach to confirm financial feasibility before 
committing to the full effort. The presenters noted that the initial scope includes 
determining affordability and setting project size limits to maintain acceptable 
debt-to-equity ratios. 
 
Board Discussion: Directors discussed the strategic importance of a data-
informed roadmap versus concerns about an unbudgeted expenditure given 
existing debt. Administration confirmed funding would come from reserves and 
emphasized the expected long-term value. It was noted consulting costs 
typically represent a small fraction of major capital projects and help avoid 
inefficiencies. 
 
Motion by Best-Baker: to approve entering into a contract with WIPFLI and 
WOLD 
2nd: Lent 
Pass: 3-1 
Opposed: Smith  
 

 Community Health Needs Assessment  

Interim CEO Christian Wallis introduced representatives from Ovation, who 
provided an overview of the upcoming Community Health Needs Assessment 
(CHNA) required every three years under IRS and CMS regulations. The 
presenters explained that the assessment identifies community health priorities, 
service gaps, and barriers to care, and supports alignment with NIHD’s strategic 
planning efforts. 

The process includes both primary data collection—through community 
surveys, stakeholder interviews, and outreach to underrepresented 
populations—and secondary data analysis using county and state health 
indicators such as chronic disease prevalence, access to care, and 

Page 10 of 83



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors            October 15, 2025 
Regular Meeting  Page 6 of 11 
 

socioeconomic factors. Ovation noted that the survey is customizable to 
incorporate NIHD-specific questions and can be distributed in multiple 
languages and formats, including paper copies and QR codes, to maximize 
participation. 

The assessment will culminate in a final report outlining community health 
priorities and recommended focus areas for NIHD over the next three years. 
The report will be reviewed prior to public release and will inform related 
strategic and quality initiatives. Ovation anticipates project completion within 
approximately five months, with flexibility to accelerate the timeline if needed. 

Public Comment: None 
 
Board Discussion: Directors and staff discussed opportunities to coordinate the 
CHNA with other strategic and quality planning activities. It was noted that the 
project is already budgeted within the CEO’s spending authority and requires 
no Board action. 
 

CHIEF OF STAFF REPORT  Medical Staff Initial Appointments 2025-2026 
Motion by Best-Baker : to approve Medical Staff Initial Appointments 2025-
2026 
2nd: Smith  
Pass: 4-0 
 
Medical Staff Initial Appointments 2025-2026 – Proxy Credentialing 
Motion by Best-Baker: to approve Medical Staff Initial Appointments 2025-
2026 – Proxy Credentialing 
2nd: Lent  
Pass: 4-0 
 
Staff Category Change 
Motion by Best-Baker: to approve Staff Category Change 
2nd: Smith  
Pass:4-0 
 

 Medical Executive Committee Meeting Report 
Dr. Jepson reported one new Emergency Department physician joining the team 
and noted recruitment efforts for an additional hospitalist to further stabilize 
coverage. An OB resident from the University of Utah recently completed a 
rotation at NIHD and expressed strong interest in relocating to Bishop after 
residency. The Medical Staff also voted to modestly increase annual dues to 
support social and professional engagement activities. 
 
Public Comment: None  
 
Board Discussion: None 
 

GOVERNANCE  Advocacy and Community Partnerships Policy  
Motion by Lent: to approve Advocacy and Community Partnerships Policy  

Page 11 of 83



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors            October 15, 2025 
Regular Meeting  Page 7 of 11 
 

2nd: Best-Baker 
Pass: 4-0 
 
Public Comment: None  
 
Board Discussion: None 
 

 Civility and Code of Conduct Policy 
Motion by Lent: to approve Civility and Code of Conduct Policy 
2nd: Smith 
Pass: 4-0 
 
Public Comment: None  
 
Board Discussion: None 
 

 Officers and Committees of the Board of Directors 
Motion by Lent: to approve Officers and Committees of the Board of Directors 
2nd: Best-Baker  
Pass: 4-0 
 
Public Comment: None  
 
Board Discussion: None 
 

 Ticketing Policy  
Motion by Smith: to approve Ticketing Policy  
2nd: Lent 
Pass: 4-0 
 
Public Comment: None  
 
Board Discussion: The Board reviewed the Ticketing and Distribution Policy, 
outlining how event tickets and community passes (e.g., Mule Days, Tri-
County Fair) are allocated for District representation. Directors confirmed the 
list is a starting reference that will be updated as new events arise. Members 
encouraged continued participation in community activities such as Chamber 
luncheons and Cancer Alliance events. 
 

CHIEF MEDICAL OFFICER 
REPORT  

Chief Medical Officer Hawkins reported that between August and October 
2025, the Emergency Department saw 1,621 patients, admitted 134 locally, and 
transferred 48 (2.9%). Most transferred patients were local Medicare recipients 
with an average age of 64. 

Top transfer categories were surgery, cardiology, and orthopedics—cases 
requiring ERCP, cardiac catheterization, pacemaker placement, or complex 
fracture care not available at NIHD. Other transfers involved trauma, intensive-

Page 12 of 83



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors            October 15, 2025 
Regular Meeting  Page 8 of 11 
 

care needs, or stroke intervention, with most patients sent to Renown or 
Mammoth Hospital. 

Transfers typically occurred within three hours, with weather or transport 
availability causing rare delays. Hawkins said this marks the first step in 
studying transfer trends to identify cases that could be safely managed locally 
in the future. 

Public Comment: 
Members of the medical staff commended the analysis, noting the value of the 
data in clarifying community perceptions about patient transfers. It was 
highlighted that the low rate of transfers and the retention of most stroke 
patients locally demonstrate the effectiveness of current clinical protocols. 
Comments also noted that while emergency transfers are important to 
understand, the larger “leakage” of patients occurs in outpatient and elective 
settings, and this broader trend should also be examined. 

Board Discussion: 
Board members expressed appreciation for the presentation and agreed that the 
findings help address misconceptions that NIHD frequently transfers patients 
unnecessarily. Directors emphasized that transfer decisions reflect NIHD’s 
commitment to patient safety and responsible use of available resources. The 
Board discussed opportunities to improve community understanding of transfer 
decisions and considered ways to share this information publicly, such as 
through health education talks or local forums. Members also supported Dr. 
Hawkins’ plan to continue collaborating with regional partners to build a 
comprehensive dataset and identify service line investments that could safely 
expand local care capacity. 
 

CHIEF FINANCIAL 
OFFICER  

Interaction of OHCA Spending Targets and Health Plan Practices 

Chief Financial Officer Mossman reported that the California Office of 
Healthcare Affordability (OHCA) has implemented statewide spending caps 
intended to limit healthcare cost growth. These targets apply to both hospitals 
and insurers. Because insurer payments to providers count as expenses under 
the program, health plans such as Anthem are now restricting hospital price 
increases to about three percent, down from the usual five percent. 

Mossman explained that this limitation will make it more difficult for NIHD to 
offset expected state and federal reimbursement cuts of three to five million 
dollars by 2030. She also noted that the California Hospital Association filed a 
lawsuit earlier in the day challenging the OHCA rules, citing concerns about 
impacts on access, workforce, and quality of care. 

Public Comment: None 
 
Board Discussion: None  
 

 Financial & Statistical Reports 

Page 13 of 83



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors            October 15, 2025 
Regular Meeting  Page 9 of 11 
 

Turning to the August financial results, Mossman reported the District ended 
the month with a $3 million year-to-date loss, approximately $2 million under 
budget due to continued low patient volumes across several service lines, 
particularly in orthopedics, emergency, and inpatient admissions. Net revenue 
was $2.2 million below budget, offset partially by expense controls that kept 
total costs under budget by $150,000. The operating margin was negative 23.7 
percent. 

Wage and benefit expenses comprised 54 percent of total costs, with continued 
improvement in benefit ratios compared to prior years. Contract labor expenses 
declined, and several cost-reduction efforts are underway, including tighter 
scheduling, department accountability reviews, and the upcoming consolidation 
of Medi-Cal billing services under Jory Revenue Solutions to improve 
efficiency and reduce vendor costs. 

Mossman also discussed cash flow, noting a year-to-date decrease of $3.3 
million primarily due to timing of IGT (Intergovernmental Transfer) payments 
and a $1.5 million bond payment due later in the month. She reported no 
concerns regarding IGT funding despite the federal budget uncertainty. The 
District’s cash on hand remains above 75 days, keeping the organization in 
compliance with bond covenants. A $3 million IRS tax credit and the spring 
IGT reimbursement are expected to restore cash levels. 

Finally, Mossman reported that the District collected $9.5 million in cash 
receipts in September, exceeding its $8.5 million monthly average, and that 
transitioning idle funds to Five Star Bank will yield improved interest earnings. 

Public Comment: None 
 
Board Discussion: None  
 
Motion by Smith: to accept the Financial and Statistical Reports 
2nd: Lent 
Pass: 4-0 
 

CHIEF NURSING OFFICER 
REPORT  

CNO Partridge reported that, as of 2:00 p.m. today, the California Department 
of Public Health approved immediate use of the hospital’s new pharmacy 
compounding hood. This concludes a seven-year project involving extensive 
work by multiple teams and Columbo Construction. Formal acknowledgments 
will follow due to the large number of contributors. Pharmacy staff are eager to 
begin using the new space and may compound the first chemotherapy doses as 
early as tomorrow. While the team is not fully moved in, operations can safely 
commence. 

Board Discussion: 
Directors congratulated the team, noting the project’s long timeline and 
consistent updates throughout construction. The board recognized staff 
persistence in reaching the finish line and thanked Columbo Construction for 

Page 14 of 83



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors            October 15, 2025 
Regular Meeting  Page 10 of 11 
 

clear communication during the build. 
 
Radiology Services Contract Update   
 
CNO Partridge presented an update on the District’s radiology services and the 
proposed renewal agreement with Tahoe Carson Radiology. She explained that 
a nationwide shortage of radiologists has made it increasingly difficult for rural 
hospitals to maintain consistent coverage. To ensure continued access to high-
quality imaging for the community, the District collaborated with Tahoe Carson 
Radiology, the executive team, and department leaders to design a sustainable 
hybrid coverage model. 

The new agreement provides a combination of on-site and remote specialty 
coverage, allowing the District to fully utilize Tahoe Carson’s subspecialty 
expertise while maintaining continuity of local service.  

Additional improvements include coordinated scheduling to keep imaging 
appointment wait times within seven days, enhanced workflow management for 
overnight reads. The total annual payment under the new contract is $2.4 
million, which was included in the current fiscal year budget and confirmed as 
fair market value through an independent review. 

Public Comment: None 
 
Board Discussion 
Board members expressed support for the updated model and commended the 
collaboration with Tahoe Carson Radiology. In response to a question about 
mammogram result turnaround times, staff confirmed that reports are processed 
quickly, with results promptly sent to primary care providers and follow-up 
letters mailed to patients. The Board agreed that the new model will strengthen 
service reliability and improve access to specialty imaging care. 

Motion by Lent: to approve the Radiology Service Contract Update 
2nd: Smith 
Pass: 4-0 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
FROM BOARD MEMBERS  
 

During the Board Roundtable, members noted the upcoming community “Run 
and Walk” event scheduled for Saturday, encouraging participation and inviting 
attendees to bring their dogs on leashes to make the event more enjoyable. 

The Board also discussed recent updates from Southern Inyo Hospital 
following its presentation to the Inyo County Board of Supervisors. Members 
expressed concern about the hospital’s financial challenges and noted that the 
Supervisors are expected to consider a potential loan, which may include a 
forgiveness option. The Board agreed it would be important to monitor these 
developments closely. 

Members who attended the annual governance conference shared that it was an 
exceptional event, offering valuable sessions and practical takeaways that have 

Page 15 of 83



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors            October 15, 2025 
Regular Meeting  Page 11 of 11 
 

already led to follow-up discussions. It was noted that next year’s conference 
will be held in Monterey during the first week of October, avoiding overlap 
with other community events. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Adjournment at 10:00 pm. 

 
 

______________________________ 
Jean Turner 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District  
Chair 

 
 

Attest: ______________________________ 
David Lent 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District Chair  
Secretary  

 

Page 16 of 83



 

Page 1 of 3 
California Job Applicant Privacy Notice 

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT  
NON-CLINICAL POLICY AND PROCEDURE  

 
 
 

 
Title: California Job Applicant Privacy Notice 
Owner: Human Resources Manager Department: Human Resources 
Scope: District Wide 
Date Last Modified: 10/06/2025 Last Review Date: No Review 

Date 
Version: 1 

Final Approval by: NIHD Board of Directors  Original Approval Date:  
 
PURPOSE: 
This notice applies to California residents applying for positions with Northern Inyo Hospital District 
("Company," "we," "us"). It explains how we collect, use, retain, and disclose personal information as required 
by the California Consumer Privacy Act (CCPA), as amended by the California Privacy Rights Act (CPRA). 
 
POLICY: 
This California Privacy Notice is provided to comply with the California Consumer Privacy Act (CCPA), as 
amended by the California Privacy Rights Act (CPRA). Its purpose is to inform California residents about the 
categories of personal information we collect, the purposes for which that information is used, and the rights 
available to California residents regarding their personal information. 
 
PROCEDURE: 
1. Categories of Personal Information We Collect 

We may collect the following categories of personal information about job applicants: 

Category    Examples 

Identifiers    Full name, email address, phone number, home address, Social Security 
number, driver’s license number 

Professional/Employment Information Résumé, employment history, references, titles, skills, 
certifications 

Education Information    Transcripts, degrees, institutions attended 

Protected Classification Characteristics (optional/voluntary)  Race, gender, ethnicity, veteran 
status, disability status (for EEO or diversity purposes) 

Internet/Network Activity  IP address, browser type, time spent on careers page (if applying through 
our website) 

Sensitive Personal Information  Government ID numbers, demographic information, background 
check data 

2. Purposes for Collection and Use 

We collect and use this information to: 

Page 17 of 83



 

Page 2 of 3 
California Job Applicant Privacy Notice 

 Evaluate your qualifications for employment 
 Conduct interviews and assessments 
 Perform background checks (where applicable) 
 Communicate with you during the recruitment process 
 Maintain records of applicants 
 Ensure compliance with legal obligations (e.g., equal opportunity reporting) 
 Protect our rights and interests in connection with hiring decisions 

 

4. Sharing and Disclosure of Personal Information 

We do not sell or share job applicant personal information for cross-context behavioral advertising. 

We may disclose your information to: 

Background check providers 

Government agencies (where required by law) 

Legal or regulatory bodies 

Third-party service providers who assist in the hiring process (under confidentiality agreements) 

 

5. Your Rights as a California Resident 

As a California resident, you have the following rights with respect to your personal information: 

Right to Know – You can request details about the categories and specific pieces of personal 
information we collect. 

Right to Delete – You can request deletion of your personal data, subject to certain exceptions. 

Right to Correct – You may request correction of inaccurate personal information. 

Right to Limit Use of Sensitive Information – If we use your sensitive data beyond legally permitted 
purposes, you can limit that use. 

To submit a request, please contact us at: 

Email: humanresources@nih.org  

Phone: (760)873-2145 

 
REFERENCES: 

1. California Civil Code § 1798.140(v) 
2. California Civil Code § 1798.100(c) 
3. California Civil Code § 1798.100 & § 1798.145(m) 
4. California Civil Code § 1798.100(a)(3) 
5. California Civil Code § 1798.115 & § 1798.140(ad) 
6. California Civil Code § 1798.121 
7. § 1798.110 & § 1798.115 
8. § 1798.105 

Page 18 of 83



 

Page 3 of 3 
California Job Applicant Privacy Notice 

9. § 1798.106 
10. § 1798.121 
11. California Civil Code § 1798.130(a)(5)(A) 
12. California Privacy Protection Agency (CPPA) 

 
RECORD RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION: 
We retain each category of personal information for the period necessary to fulfill the purposes outlined above, 
unless a longer retention period is required by law. Generally, applicant data is retained for 3 years to comply 
with legal and regulatory requirements. 
 
CROSS REFERENCE POLICIES AND PROCEDURES: 

1. Compliance Program for Northern Inyo Healthcare District 
 
Supersedes: Not Set 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 19 of 83



1 
Environmental Services Department Hours of Service 

 
 

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
NON-CLINICAL PROCEDURE 

 
 

Title: Environmental Services Department Hours of Service 
Owner: MANAGER OF ENVIRONMENTAL 
SERVICES 

Department: Environmental Services 

Scope: Environmental Services 
Date Last Modified: 11/02/2022 Last Review Date: 11/03/2025  Version: 3 

Final Approval by: NIHD Executive Committee Original Approval Date: 03/1998 

 
PURPOSE: 
To define the normal hours of service of the Environmental Services Department and the procedure for 
obtaining urgent services outside of those hours. 

PROCEDURE: 
1. The Environmental Services (EVS) Department will respond to urgent requests for service on the 

hospital campus needed for reasons of health, safety, or patient care 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, 
including holidays. 

2. The Environmental Services Department will provide routine services and will respond to non-urgent 
requests for services during its normal hours of service, 4 am until 12:30 am. 

3. Off duty, EVS workforce is utilized for urgent EVS matters between 12:30 am and 4 am. 
4. The House Supervisor on duty must call the Environmental Services Manager or Assistant Managers   

who will come in or notify an attendant or attendants to come in due to an emergency environmental 
service need.  
 

 

REFERENCES: N/A 
 
RECORD RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION:   
Northern Inyo Healthcare District maintains payroll and time clock records for a minimum of ten (10) years.  
These documents contain information on ‘One Time Callback’ hours worked by NIHD workforce. 
 
CROSS REFERENCE POLICIES AND PROCEDURES:  N/A 
 

 
 
 
Supersedes: v.2 General Administrative: Personnel Policies: Hours of Service  

 
 

Page 20 of 83



 

1 
Medical Staff Department Policy - Surgery 

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
CLINICAL POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
 
 

Title: Medical Staff Department Policy - Surgery 
Owner: Medical Staff Director Department: Medical Staff 
Scope: Practitioners with Surgical Privileges 
Date Last Modified: 11/10/2025 Last Review Date: No Review 

Date 
Version: 2 

Final Approval by: NIHD Board of Directors  Original Approval Date: 12/16/2021 
 
PURPOSE: To delineate clear expectations for practitioners in the Department of Surgery within Northern Inyo 
Healthcare District (NIHD). 
 
POLICY: All practitioners (physicians and Advanced Practice Providers) granted surgical privileges will 
adhere to the following procedures. 
 
PROCEDURE: 

1. Call 
a. Practitioners on call coverage shall return phone calls as soon as possible and be at the bedside 

within the below-listed timeframes if needed in an emergency. The exceptions would be if they 
are in surgery or involved in another emergency, in which case the practitioner shall respond as 
soon as possible.   

i. General Surgery – 30 minutes 
ii. Obstetrics & Gynecology – 30 minutes 

iii. Orthopedic Surgery – 60 minutes 
iv. Urology – 60 minutes 
v. Other – other surgical specialties that are not specifically listed have a 30-minute 

response time by default. 
b. All surgery patients admitted will be rounded on in the hospital within 24 hours of admission and 

every day thereafter.  
2. Documentation: 

a. The practitioner shall be responsible for developing the ability to use the electronic health record 
of NIHD. 

b. Daily documentation is required for all surgery inpatients unless the care of the patient is taken 
over by another service. 

3. Credentialing: 
a. Active Staff and Courtesy Staff practitioners in the Department of Surgery must be board 

certified or board eligible in their specialty. 
4. Meeting Attendance: 

a. Practitioners are to attend meetings of the general Medical Staff and the 
Surgery/Tissue/Transfusion/Anesthesia committee as per Medical Staff Bylaws requirements.  

5. Focused Professional Practice Evaluation (FPPE): 
a. Practitioners new to NIHD will be expected to complete FPPE as per policy. 

Page 21 of 83



 

2 
Medical Staff Department Policy - Surgery 

b. Procedural competency will be demonstrated through directly observed procedures, retrospective 
chart review, and/or interviews with staff as recommended at the time of privileging.  

6. Ongoing Professional Practice Evaluation (OPPE): 
a. Practitioners will be expected to participate in all requirements of OPPE as per Medical Staff 

policy. Completion of evaluation forms will be the responsibility of the Department Chiefs 
within the Surgery/Tissue/Transfusion/Anesthesia committee for their respective departments 
(e.g., Chief of Orthopedics, Chief of Surgery).   

7. Peer Review:   
a. All surgical charts identified by critical indicators will be peer reviewed by the relevant 

Department Chief or delegated practitioner. Selected cases will be reviewed at the 
Surgery/Tissue/Transfusion/Anesthesia committee at its next scheduled meeting. Records are 
confidential and will be kept by the Medical Staff Office.   

8. Services Provided: 
a. Practitioners should address and/or manage, within the scope of their training and responsibility 

and blood blank limitations, adult and pediatric services to age 3. See Pediatric Surgery 
Guidelines for more details regarding pediatric surgery. 

b. Practitioners should also provide consultation and management services to patients as requested 
by NIHD Medical Staff members, the Emergency Department, and other departments as 
appropriate.   

9. Re-Entry: 
a. Applicants to the Department of Surgery are not eligible for re-entry and must demonstrate 

current competence as defined by the Joint Commission. 
 
REFERENCES: 

1. N/A 
 

RECORD RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION: 
1. Life of policy, plus 6 years 

 
CROSS REFERENCED POLICIES AND PROCEDURES: 

1. Northern Inyo Healthcare District Medical Staff Bylaws  
2. Medical Staff Peer Review and Professional Practice Evaluations  
3. Practitioner Re-Entry Policy  
4. Pediatric Surgery Guidelines  

 
Supersedes: v.1 Medical Staff Department Policy - Surgery 

 

Page 22 of 83



1 
Patient Visit Registration Related to Accidents on Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) Property 

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT  
NON-CLINICAL POLICY AND PROCEDURE  

 
 
 

 
Title: Patient Visit Registration Related to Accidents on Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) Property 
Owner: Director of Patient Access Department: Patient Access 
Scope:  Patient Access 
Date Last Modified: 03/09/2023 Last Review Date: 09/07/2025 Version: 1 
Final Approval by: NIHD Board of Directors  Original Approval Date:  

 
PURPOSE:  
 
To provide guidance on how to register visits for visitors who are involved in an accident on Northern Inyo 
Healthcare District (NIHD) property and are seen in the Emergency Department (ED). 
 
This policy pertains to visitors and outpatients who are injured while on NIHD property. It does not apply to 
patients in admitted to Observation or Inpatient status. 
 
POLICY: 
When a visitor/outpatient has an accident such as a slip and fall, trip and fall, etc. in the parking lots, the 
roadway between the NIHD campus buildings or inside of the hospital or Clinics, they may be seen in the ED. 
The visit created is to be specifically related to the injury incurred in the accident. No other conditions the 
patient may have are to be dealt with. 
 
PROCEDURE: 
 

1. An Unusual Occurrence Report (UOR) must be filled out and submitted to Compliance. 
2. The Emergency Department (ED) patient access workforce registers the injured person with an 

encounter number specific to their accident. 
3. The patient, or parent/guardian in cases of minor patients, is left as the guarantor and all insurances for 

that patient are verified, entered or updated. 
4. Send an email to the Business Office Manager listing the patient’s name, DOB, encounter number and 

providing details of the injury event. 
5. The Patient Access Representative will be asked to change the guarantor in the visit only if NIHD 

becomes the guarantor for the visit. 
 
REFERENCES:  N/A 
 
CROSS-REFERENCE P&P: 

1. InQuiseek - #500 Financial Policies 
2. Guarantor Verification Procedure - NIH Admission Services  

 
RECORD RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION: 
Registration Records are maintained by the Norther Inyo Healthcare District Health Information Management 
Department. 
 

Page 23 of 83



2 
Patient Visit Registration Related to Accidents on Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) Property 

Supersedes: Not Set 
 

Page 24 of 83



 

1 
Processing Returned Mail 

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT  
NON-CLINICAL POLICY AND PROCEDURE  

 
 
 

 
Title: Processing Returned Mail 
Owner: Director of Patient Access Department: Patient Access 
Scope: Patient Access 
Date Last Modified: 09/07/2025 Last Review Date: No Review 

Date 
Version: 2 

Final Approval by: NIHD Board of Directors  Original Approval Date:  
 
PURPOSE:  To provide guidance in processing Northern Inyo Healthcare District Returned Outgoing United 
States Postal Services (USPS) mail. 
 
POLICY:  The Patient Access Department is responsible for handling all returned mail received from the 
United States Postal Service (USPS) due to insufficient address, patient no longer residing at address. 
 
PROCEDURE: 

1. Determine who sent mail 
2. Return to Sender (Department) 
3. If not identified 
4. Who is it addressed to 

A. Is it a Patient Statement? 
a. Return to Patient Access Manager 

B. Is it a Vendor Check? 
a. Return to the Accounting Department 

C. Is it addressed to a Physician? 
a. Return to the Medical Staff Office 

5. Marked Confidential and not Identified Who Sent Item 
a. ALL MAIL MARKED CONFIDENTIAL SHOULD NOT BE OPENED 
b. Return to the Administration Office. 

 
REFERENCES:  N/A 
 
RECORD RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION:  N/A 
 
CROSS REFERENCED POLICIES AND PROCEDURES: 

1. Processing United States Postal Service Mail 
 
Supersedes: v.1 Processing Returned Mail 

 

Page 25 of 83



 

1 
Processing United States Postal Service Mail 

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT  
NON-CLINICAL POLICY AND PROCEDURE  

 
 
 

 
Title: Processing United States Postal Service Mail 
Owner: Director of Patient Access Department: Patient Access 
Scope:  District Wide 
Date Last Modified: 09/07/2025 Last Review Date: No Review 

Date 
Version: 3 

Final Approval by: NIHD Board of Directors  Original Approval Date: 02/15/2017 
 
PURPOSE:  

To provide guidance on processing Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) outgoing and incoming United 
States Postal Service (USPS) mail. 

POLICY: 

The Patient Access Department is responsible for processing all mail received from the USPS or being sent out 
via the USPS. FedEx and United Parcel Service transactions are handled by the Purchasing Department. 

 

**NIHD mail processing is reserved exclusively for NIHD business mail** 

 Postage may NOT be applied to any employees, patients or visitors personal mail 
 Employees may not send or receive mail or packages of a personal nature through NIHD mail processing 

with one exception:  
o An employee may place a sealed, self-stamped, letter sized envelope in the outgoing USPS 

letter tray 
o No personal flats or packages of any kind may be put in the USPS mail lug, even if postage has 

been applied. These must be deposited in a U.S. Postal Service mailbox offsite, or taken to the 
Post Office on personal time. 

 Only trained Patient Access staff may process mail using the postal meter machine. 
 Only trained Compliance Staff may process mail if Patient Access is not available to assist. 

 
PROCEDURE: 

Outgoing mail: 

 NIHD business mail being sent via the USPS is processed in the Central Registration work area where 
the postal meter machine is located. 

 Patient Access staff will seal (if unsealed), stamp and sort all outgoing mail into the USPS mail lug or 
letter tray 

o Postage may be applied ONLY to NIHD business related mail  
o The postal meter machine will be used to weigh and apply first class postage to all types of mail 

(letters, flats and parcels) both domestic and international, and to seal unsealed letter mail. Flats 
and packages are to be sealed by the sender. 

Page 26 of 83



 

2 
Processing United States Postal Service Mail 

o Any type of mail that is designated by the postal meter machine as a “package” (when calculating 
the postage) requires a USPS barcode sticker to be applied to the side of or below the mailing 
address. This designation will show in the view window of the postal meter machine. 

 Note: This sticker does not need to be applied in the case of items being sent by Certified 
mail, as there is already a barcode. 

 Certified mail will be checked to make sure the appropriate USPS certified mail forms have been applied 
and the appropriate Certified postage will be applied taking into consideration: 

o Whether or not the sender requires a “Return Receipt” 
o Whether or not the Certified mail is being sent as “Restricted”  
o Whether or not the piece of mail is bendable. If it cannot be bent, postage must be calculated as if 

it were a “parcel” even if it is a regular envelope or a flat. 
 Certified mail will be put into the USPS mail lug or letter tray to be picked up by the USPS carrier. 

o If the sender wishes to receive the paper Certified mail receipt which is stamped by the post 
office, they may take their certified mail directly to the post office 

o The return receipt card, if affixed to the back of the envelope, will be returned to NIHD once the 
certified mail has been delivered.  

 The return receipt card will be returned to the sender if the department or person is 
included as a part of the return address. 

 If the department or sender is not included in the return address on the return receipt card, 
it will be kept in the Central Registration work area for a period of 6 months, after which it 
will be shredded. 

 

Incoming mail: 

 Is delivered by the USPS to the Central Registration work area, Monday through Saturday excluding 
Federal holidays. 

 Incoming mail is sorted and delivered to the NIHD mailroom with the following exception: 
No mail containing a payment may be left in the Mailroom, but must be delivered directly to an 
Accounts Receivable Technician. 

 Mail received on Saturday is delivered to the mailroom on the following Monday, or the Tuesday 
following a Monday holiday. 

 Refer to the attached document titled “Important Mail Routing Information” for tips on routing the mail 
to the appropriate location. 

 

Downloading Postage and ordering supplies/service for the postage machine: 

The Patient Access Director or Manager or his/her designee will be responsible for:  

 Down loading postage into the postal meter machine per the company guidelines 
 Notifying the Accounts Payable clerk of the amount downloaded, supplying him/her with a tape printed 

from the postage machine 
 Ordering supplies (red ink, tape, USPS barcode stickers, and distilled water) and obtaining Certified mail 

stickers and cards from the Bishop Post Office for the postal meter machine. 
 Arranging for service calls as necessary per the service agreement for the machine 

 

Postage machine downtime: 

Page 27 of 83



 

3 
Processing United States Postal Service Mail 

If the Postage machine breaks down, the Patient Access Director/Manager will: 

 Contact IT Service Desk  
 Immediately arrange for a service call 
 Coordinate the processing and delivery of outgoing mail  

o As necessary the outgoing mail will be taken directly to the US Post Office in Bishop by either 
the Admission Services manager or, in his/her absence, the Admission Services Coordinator.  

o Stamps are to be purchased and kept in the safe in Central Registration to be used during postage 
processing downtimes.  

o All receipts from the USPS are to be submitted for reimbursement along with an Accounts 
Payable Check Request form. 

 

REFERENCES: N/A 

CROSS REFERENCE P&P: N/A 

 

 
Supersedes: v.2 Processing United States Postal Service Mail 

 

Page 28 of 83



 

 
Page 1 of 9 

Prevention of Catheter-Associated Urinary Tract Infections (CAUTIs) 

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
CLINICAL POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
 
 

Title: Prevention of Catheter-Associated Urinary Tract Infections (CAUTIs) 
Owner: Manager Employee Health/ Infection Control Department: Infection Prevention 
Scope: Inpatient Nursing, Outpatient Nursing, Emergency Department 
Date Last Modified:  Last Review Date:  Version: 6 
Final Approval by: NIHD Board of Directors  Original Approval Date:  

 
PURPOSE: 
To provide evidenced-based guidelines for the prevention of Urinary Catheter Associated Infections (CAUTI) 

SUPPORTIVE DATA: 
Urinary tract infections (UTIs) are the most frequently identified healthcare-associated infection. 
Among UTIs that occur during hospitalization, 75% are associated with a urinary catheter. 
 
DEFINITIONS: 

1. Dependent loop: Any section or part of the tubing that hangs below the urinary drainage port at 
the top of the urimeter (urine measuring device) 

2. Healthcare personnel (HCP): All individuals working in a healthcare setting who have 
potential for direct or indirect contact with patients, a patient’s environment, or infectious 
materials 

3. Urinary catheter: an indwelling urinary drainage tube that is inserted into the bladder through 
the urethra. 

POLICY:  
The prevention of CAUTIs requires appropriate practices related to urinary catheter insertion and 
maintenance, and the timely removal of urinary catheters when catheter use is no longer indicated. 
Practices and procedures must be in place to ensure that use of the device is a necessity (i.e., approved 
indications); the urinary catheter is correctly inserted (only trained caregivers can perform insertion); 
the urinary catheter is properly maintained (e.g., daily hygiene care and daily review of catheter 
necessity); and the catheter is removed when it is no longer needed. Only trained HCP are permitted to 
insert and remove indwelling urinary catheters. The risk of a CAUTI increases with each day the 
urinary catheter remains in place. Prior to administering an indwelling urinary catheter, HCP will first 
consider whether there is an appropriate less-invasive intervention, such as using an external catheter 
or intermittent catheterization. The hospital performs surveillance for healthcare-associated CAUTIs to 
evaluate for trends and process improvement opportunities for prevention of infections. 

PROCEDURES:  
Patient Assessment/Indications 

 Before the insertion of an indwelling urinary catheter, the healthcare team must assess whether 
the patient is a candidate for other methods for bladder management, including intermittent 
catheterization or use of a male or female external catheter, bedside commode, or urinary 
incontinence pads. A physician order for an indwelling urinary catheter must be obtained. 

Page 29 of 83



Page 30 of 83



Page 31 of 83



Page 32 of 83



Page 33 of 83



Page 34 of 83



Page 35 of 83



Page 36 of 83



Page 37 of 83



Page 38 of 83



Page 39 of 83



Page 40 of 83



Page 41 of 83



Page 42 of 83



Page 43 of 83



Page 44 of 83



Page 45 of 83



Page 46 of 83



Page 47 of 83



Page 48 of 83



Page 49 of 83



Page 50 of 83



Page 51 of 83



Page 52 of 83



Page 53 of 83



Page 54 of 83



Page 55 of 83



Page 56 of 83



Page 57 of 83



Page 58 of 83



Page 59 of 83



Page 60 of 83



Page 61 of 83



Page 62 of 83



Page 63 of 83



Page 64 of 83



Page 65 of 83



Page 66 of 83



Page 67 of 83



Page 68 of 83



Page 69 of 83



Page 70 of 83



Page 71 of 83



Page 72 of 83



Page 73 of 83



Page 74 of 83



Page 75 of 83



Page 76 of 83



Page 77 of 83



Page 78 of 83



Page 79 of 83



Page 80 of 83



Page 81 of 83



Page 82 of 83



Page 83 of 83


	Table of Contents
	Agenda
	Agenda

	Consent Agenda
	Special Meeting Minutes - October 15, 2025
	Regular Meeting Minutes - October 15, 2025
	California Job Applicant Privacy Notice
	Environmental Services Department Hours of Service
	Medical Staff Department Policy - Surgery
	Patient Visit Registration Related to Accidents on Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) Property
	Processing Returned Mail
	Processing United States Postal Service Mail
	Prevention of Catheter- Associated Urinary Tract Infections (CAUTIs) 

	New Business
	ACHD Letter of Support 

	Chief Executive Officer Report
	CyberMaxx Update 

	Governance Committee
	Memo - Governance Organizational Alignment and CEO Performance: Jacob Green Contract
	Governance Organizational Alignment and CEO Performance: Jacob Green Contract  

	Quality Committee
	Memo - Quality Dashboard
	Quality Dashboard

	Chief Financial Officer Report
	CFO Report Financial Summary and Operation Insights - September 2025
	NIHD Financial Summary September 2025
	NIHD KPIs FYE September 2025
	NIHD Financial Update September 2025
	NIHD Financial Statements September 2025


